

# REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES

May 8, 2023, at 4:00 PM CTAC, 802 NW 5<sup>th</sup> Ave, Gainesville, FL 32601

#### Call to Order

Chair Tina Certain called the meeting to order at 4:00 PM.

#### **Roll Call**

#### **PRESENT**

Chair Tina Certain
Vice Chair Lee Pinkoson
Treasurer Ken Cornell
Member Shane Andrew
Member Judge Denise R. Ferrero
Member Nancy Hardt
Member Cheryl Twombly – attended virtually with emergency exemption

### **ABSENT**

Member Maggie Labarta Member Patricia Snyder

Motion to approve the COVID emergency exemption for Member Twombly made by Member Cornell, Seconded by Vice Chair Pinkoson.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

### Agenda Review, Revision and Approval

Motion to approve the agenda made by Vice Chair Pinkoson, Seconded by Member Cornell.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

# **Consent Agenda**

- 1. 2023 Board Attendance
- 2. Programmatic Award and Expense Report
- 3. March 2023 Checks and Expenditures Report
- 4. Monthly Budget Review

- 5. Children's Trust Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04.03.2023
- 6. Board Meeting Evaluation Survey Results from 04.03.2023
- 7. April Sponsorship Applications

#### **General Public Comments**

# **Chair's Report**

Chair Certain discussed the recent joint meetings that have taken place between the County, the School Board, and the Children's Trust. She asked if the Trust would like to set a meeting with the City of Gainesville to discuss summer programming and the shared use of facilities. Member Cornell agreed that it would be useful and would like to discuss the literacy initiative, and the possible funding of that work. He also reported that the City of Gainesville may wish to partner with Trust providers for summer programs as they have facilities, but little personnel to staff them. Member Hardt would like to discuss transportation and the RTS system. Member Cornell confirmed that the BoCC has previously mentioned the possibility of free fare for parents, in addition to the current free fare for children.

### **Executive Director's Report**

8. 05.08.2023 ED Report

Executive Director Marsha Kiner reported on the progress of the TeensWork program. There have been 400 students that have applied, but currently only 220 job slots. They are still in the process of finding employers. SBAC has allowed the use of schools for this program and will potentially employ 38 teens.

Wayne Fields from Minority Business Listings reported that there are currently 212 available jobs. They are still waiting for commitments from the City of Gainesville, the University of Florida, UF Health, and Alachua County. This number also doesn't include the 38 from the School Board.

Nikki Thompson from Goodwill Industries confirmed that of the employers signed up through their portal, they have 177 jobs available to teens. They are accepting students on a first come first served basis, there are currently 112 that have completed the onboarding process.

ED Kiner also reported on the recent completion of the BLI Masterclass and invited the Board to the graduation proceedings in July.

# **Committee Updates**

Steering Committee Chair Twombly reported that the last SC meeting was on April 27th virtually. Vashti and Nikki (consultants) led a very difficult exercise of trying to rank the Trust's four priorities, then ranked the strategies and goals associated with each. It was a very robust

discussion. At the next meeting, those rankings should be revealed. It will be in person on May 19, at 9:00 AM, at the Children's Trust Offices.

#### **Presentations**

9. Afterschool RFP 2023 - 01

Director of Program Operations, Kristy Goldwire, presented the draft of the 2023 Afterschool RFP. This was discussed in a workshop on April 17 and is brought back to the board for final approval. The release date is May 12 with a due date for applications on June 16.

Motion made by Vice Chair Pinkoson, Seconded by Member Cornell to make bidder's conferences highly recommended, but not required to apply for funds.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Motion made by Vice Chair Pinkoson, Seconded by Member Cornell to change the requirement that a program must provide services a minimum of 4 days per week to 5 days per week. After discussion, this motion was modified by Vice Chair Pinkoson, Seconded by Member Andrew to keep the requirement of 4 days per week, but provide bonus points when scoring the applications of those providers who are open 5 days per week. Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

The board also discussed the potential focus of each age group. Elementary School to have a focus on literacy with UFLI, Middle School to prioritize developmental stages, transitions to high school, healthy relationship boundaries, internet and social media safety, and social emotional development. High School programs to incorporate enrichment clubs that focus on career exploration, career technical education, workforce development, leadership and college preparation. A final decision was made to strongly encourage literacy and math for K-8<sup>th</sup> grade, but to not make it a requirement of the RFP.

Motion made by Vice Chair Pinkoson, Seconded by Member Cornell to:

- 1. Ask staff to change some wording of the RFP to say that "The Children's Trust believes strongly in literacy and math improvements." and ask "What as an organization will you do to address this issue?".
- 2. Ask staff to meet with stakeholders and providers in Alachua County to discuss a Comprehensive Literacy Plan for Alachua County and bring recommendations to the board in advance of the next Afterschool RFP.
- 3. Ask the Chair to send a letter to the School Board Chair emphasizing the importance of literacy in Alachua County.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Motion made by Member Cornell, Seconded by Vice Chair Pinkoson to approve Resolution 2023-06, approve the release of RFP 2023-01, authorize \$1,000,000 for Afterschool

programming for school year 2023-2024, and authorize the Executive Director to appoint a review team.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Motion made by Member Ferrero, Seconded by Vice Chair Pinkoson to modify the language in RFP 2023-01 to include the text, "The Trust recognizes there will be the need for flexibility for the first three months with SAMIS.".

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

#### **Old Business**

# 10. Update on Board Member Appointments

As board members' terms expire, the Board of County Commissioners collects and submits three applicants for each expiring seat to the Governor of Florida. Member Cole-Smith's term expired in January 2021, Member Pinkoson's term expired in January 2022, and Member Labarta and Member Snyder's terms expired in January 2023. The Governor has rejected all three applicants for one of the seats being vacated in January 2023, therefore the County will reopen their call for applications and resubmit.

#### **New Business**

### 11. New Building Search

Executive Director Kiner presented a draft contract with Bosshardt Realty Services for the property at 4010 NW 25th Place, Gainesville, FL 32606, requesting approval to make an offer and begin the purchasing process. The listing price is 2.15M, the Trust's offer would be 1.95M with a 50K deposit. There would be a 60-day due diligence period. The first 30 days would be to conduct any surveys, testing, and order at least two appraisals from companies of Ms. Kiner's choice — not to be influenced by the Seller or their representatives. A second 30 days will be contracted for the Board to vote to approve or reject the purchase. Atty Swain suggests that a County attorney draft the documents for this purchase, to ensure it is processed as a government purchase instead of commercial. Member Cornell requests that if the purchase seems likely, he would like to have an open day for the board members and public to view the space.

Member Cornell made sure to inform all present that he is a Senior VP at Bosshardt, however he will not be getting any benefit from this transaction.

Motion made to authorize the Executive Director to negotiate the potential purchase of the property in question and come back to the Board with a contract of sale as prepared by the County, made by Vice Chair Pinkoson, Seconded by Member Cornell.

Voting Yea: Chair Certain, Vice Chair Pinkoson, Member Andrew, Member Cornell, Member Hardt, Member Twombly

Voting No: Member Ferrero

Motion passes.

# **Board Member Comments**

Member Cornell suggested adding an opportunity for public comment at the beginning and end of future board meetings.

# **Next Meeting Dates**

Regular Board Meeting - Monday, June 12th, 2023 @ 4:00 PM Children's Trust of Alachua County, 802 NW 5th Ave, Gainesville, FL 32601

Regular Board Meeting - Monday, July 10th, 2023 @ 4:00 PM Children's Trust of Alachua County, 802 NW 5th Ave, Gainesville, FL 32601

# Adjournment

Chair Tina Certain adjourned the meeting at 7:00 PM.



# **Commercial Contract**

agrees to buy and	DAVIS MONK & COMPANY		("Seller'
agrees to sell the prop	perty at:		
Street Address:	4010 NW 25TH PL, Gainesville	e, FL 32606	
	COM SW COR SEC N ALONG C/L NW 43RD ST 1410 FT		
FT S 64 DEG E	186.83 FT NELY AROUND A CURVE 101.01 FT N 216.14 I	FT W 240 FT TO POB O	R 3395/1354
and the following Pers	sonal Property:		
(all collectively referre	ed to as the "Property") on the terms and conditions set t	forth below.	
2. PURCHASE PRIC	E:	\$	1,950,00
(a) Deposit held	in escrow by: Richard Withers	\$	50,000
	("Escrow Agent") (checks are subject to actual and	I final collection)	
Escrow Agent's a	address: <u>1120 NW 8th Ave, Gainesville, FL 32601</u> Phone:_	352727-4404	
• •	posit to be made to Escrow Agent		
	ys (3 days, if left blank) after completion of Due Diliger ys after Effective Date		
		Ψ	
` ,	posit to be made to Escrow Agent lys (3 days, if left blank) after completion of Due Diliger	nce Period or	
	ys after Effective Date	\$	
(d) Total financin	g (see Paragraph 5)	\$	
(e) Other		\$	
` '	ill be credited to the purchase price at closing.		
Balance to close, via wire transfer.	, subject to adjustments and prorations, to be paid	\$	1,900,000
	of this paragraph, "completion" means the end of the D	•	
	otice of acceptability.	de Diligence Feriod of	upon delivery or
3. TIME FOR ACCEP	TANCE; EFFECTIVE DATE; COMPUTATION OF TIM	E: Unless this offer is	signed by <b>Seller</b>
	ecuted copy delivered to all parties on or before		
	the <b>Buyer's</b> deposit, if any, will be returned. The time for the counter offer is delivered. <b>The "Effective Date" of t</b>		
	r and Buyer has signed or initialed and delivered thi		
	Calendar days will be used when compu		
	riods of 5 days or less will be computed without includin riod ending on a Saturday, Sunday, or national legal ho		
	s of the essence in this Contract.	ilday will exteria urtii 5	.oo p.m. or the ne
4. CLOSING DATE A	AND LOCATION:		
	: This transaction will be closed on		
	ded by other provisions of this Contract. The Closing Dimited to, Financing and Due Diligence periods. In the		

41 42	on Closing Date and <b>Buyer</b> is unable to obtain property insurance, <b>Buyer</b> may postpone closing up to 5 days after the insurance underwriting suspension is lifted.
43 44	<b>(b) Location:</b> Closing will take place inAlachua County, Florida. (If left blank, closing will take place in the county where the property is located.) Closing may be conducted by mail or electronic means.
45	5. THIRD PARTY FINANCING:
46	BUYER'S OBLIGATION: On or before NA days (5 days if left blank) after Effective Date, Buyer will apply for third
47	party financing in an amount not to exceed <u>NA</u> % of the purchase price or \$, with a fixed
48	interest rate not to exceed NA per year with an initial variable interest rate not to exceed NA, with points or
49	commitment or loan fees not to exceed <u>NA</u> % of the principal amount, for a term of <u>NA</u> years, and amortized
50	over NA years, with additional terms as follows:
	over years, with additional terms as follows.
51	Buyer will timely provide any and all credit, employment, financial and other information reasonably required by any
52 53	lender. <b>Buyer</b> will use good faith and reasonable diligence to (i) obtain Loan Approval within <b>NA</b> days (45 days if left
54	blank) from Effective Date (Loan Approval Date), (ii) satisfy terms and conditions of the Loan Approval, and (iii) close
55	the loan. <b>Buyer</b> will keep <b>Seller</b> and Broker fully informed about loan application status and authorizes the mortgage
56	broker and lender to disclose all such information to <b>Seller</b> and Broker. <b>Buyer</b> will notify <b>Seller</b> immediately upon
57	obtaining financing or being rejected by a lender. CANCELLATION: If Buyer, after using good faith and reasonable
58	diligence, fails to obtain Loan Approval by Loan Approval Date, <b>Buyer</b> may within <u>NA</u> days (3 days if left blank)
59	deliver written notice to <b>Seller</b> stating <b>Buyer</b> either waives this financing contingency or cancels this Contract.
60	If <b>Buyer</b> does neither, then <b>Seller</b> may cancel this Contract by delivering written notice to <b>Buyer</b> at any time thereafter.
61	Unless this financing contingency has been waived, this Contract shall remain subject to the satisfaction, by closing, of
62 63	those conditions of Loan Approval related to the Property. <b>DEPOSIT(S)</b> (for purposes of Paragraph 5 only): If Buyer has used good faith and reasonable diligence but does not obtain Loan Approval by Loan Approval Date and
64	thereafter either party elects to cancel this Contract as set forth above or the lender fails or refuses to close on or
65	before the Closing Date without fault on <b>Buyer's</b> part, the Deposit(s) shall be returned to <b>Buyer</b> , whereupon both
66	parties will be released from all further obligations under this Contract, except for obligations stated herein as surviving
67	the termination of this Contract. If neither party elects to terminate this Contract as set forth above or Buyer fails to use
68	good faith or reasonable diligence as set forth above, Seller will be entitled to retain the Deposit(s) if the transaction
69	does not close. For purposes of this Contract, "Loan Approval" means a statement by the lender setting forth the terms
70 71	and conditions upon which the lender is willing to make a particular mortgage loan to a particular buyer. Neither a pre- approval letter not a prequalification letter shall be deemed a Loan Approval for purposes of this Contract.
72 73 74 75 76	<b>6. TITLE: Seller</b> has the legal capacity to and will convey marketable title to the Property by statutory warranty deed □ special warranty deed □ other
77 78	provided there exists at closing no violation of the foregoing and none of them prevents <b>Buyer's</b> intended use of the
79	Property as
80	(a) Evidence of Title: The party who pays the premium for the title insurance policy will select the closing agent
81	and pay for the title search and closing services. <b>Seller</b> will, at (check one) <b>Seller</b> 's <b>Buyer</b> 's expense and within 20 days after Effective Date or at least No. days before Closing Date deliver to <b>Buyer</b> (check one)
82 83	within <u>30</u> days after Effective Date or at least <u>NA</u> days before Closing Date deliver to <b>Buyer</b> (check one) <b>X</b> (i) a title insurance commitment by a Florida licensed title insurer setting forth those matters to be discharged by
os 84	Seller at or before Closing and, upon <b>Buyer</b> recording the deed, an owner's policy in the amount of the purchase
85	price for fee simple title subject only to exceptions stated above. If <b>Buyer</b> is paying for the evidence of title and
86	Seller has an owner's policy, Seller will deliver a copy to Buyer within 15 days after Effective Date. □ (ii.) an
87	abstract of title, prepared or brought current by an existing abstract firm or certified as correct by an existing firm.
88	However, if such an abstract is not available to Seller, then a prior owner's title policy acceptable to the proposed
89	insurer as a base for reissuance of coverage may be used. The prior policy will include copies of all policy
90	exceptions and an update in a format acceptable to <b>Buyer</b> from the policy effective date and certified to <b>Buyer</b> or
	Buyer () () and Seller () () acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is Page 2 of 8 Pages.

Buyer's closing agent together with copies of all documents recited in the prior policy and in the update. If such an abstract or prior policy is not available to Seller then (i.) above will be the evidence of title. (b) Title Examination: Buver will, within 15 days from receipt of the evidence of title deliver written notice to Seller of title defects. Title will be deemed acceptable to Buyer if (1) Buyer fails to deliver proper notice of defects or (2) Buyer delivers proper written notice and Seller cures the defects within 30 days from receipt of the notice ("Curative Period"). Seller shall use good faith efforts to cure the defects. If the defects are cured within the Curative Period, closing will occur on the latter of 10 days after receipt by Buyer of notice of such curing or the scheduled Closing Date. Seller may elect not to cure defects if Seller reasonably believes any defect cannot be cured within the Curative Period. If the defects are not cured within the Curative Period, **Buyer** will have 10 days from receipt of notice of Seller's inability to cure the defects to elect whether to terminate this Contract or accept title subject to existing defects and close the transaction without reduction in purchase price. (c) Survey: (check applicable provisions below) (i.) **Seller** will, within \_\_\_\_ 5 \_\_ days from Effective Date, deliver to **Buyer** copies of prior surveys. plans, specifications, and engineering documents, if any, and the following documents relevant to this transaction: prepared for **Seller** or in **Seller's** possession, which show all currently existing structures. In the event this transaction does not close, all documents provided by Seller will be returned to Seller within 10 days from the date this Contract is terminated. □ Buyer will, at □ Seller's □ Buyer's expense and within the time period allowed to deliver and examine title evidence, obtain a current certified survey of the Property from a registered surveyor. If the survey reveals encroachments on the Property or that the improvements encroach on the lands of another, \(\sigma\) **Buyer** will accept the Property with existing encroachments \subseteq such encroachments will constitute a title defect to be cured within the Curative Period. (d) Ingress and Egress: Seller warrants that the Property presently has ingress and egress. 7. PROPERTY CONDITION: Seller will deliver the Property to Buyer at the time agreed in its present "as is" condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and will maintain the landscaping and grounds in a comparable condition. Seller makes no warranties other than marketability of title. In the event that the condition of the Property has materially changed since the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, Buyer may elect to terminate the Contract and receive a refund of any and all deposits paid, plus interest, if applicable, or require Seller to return the Property to the required condition existing as of the end of Due Diligence period, the cost of which is not to exceed \$ the purchase price, if left blank). By accepting the Property "as is", Buyer waives all claims against Seller for any defects in the Property. (Check (a) or (b)) ☐ (a) As Is: Buyer has inspected the Property or waives any right to inspect and accepts the Property in its "as is" condition. **X** (b) Due Diligence Period: Buyer will, at Buyer's expense and within 60 days from Effective Date ("Due Diligence Period"), determine whether the Property is suitable, in Buyer's sole and absolute discretion. During the term of this Contract, Buyer may conduct any tests, analyses, surveys and investigations ("Inspections") which Buyer deems necessary to determine to Buyer's satisfaction the Property's engineering, architectural, environmental properties; zoning and zoning restrictions; flood zone designation and restrictions; subdivision regulations; soil and grade; availability of access to public roads, water, and other utilities; consistency with local, state and regional growth management and comprehensive land use plans; availability of permits, government approvals and licenses; compliance with American with Disabilities Act; absence of asbestos, soil and ground water contamination; and other inspections that Buyer deems appropriate. Buyer will deliver written notice to **Seller** prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period of **Buyer's** determination of whether or not the Property is acceptable. Buyer's failure to comply with this notice requirement will constitute acceptance of the Property in its present "as is" condition. **Seller** grants to **Buyer**, its agents, contractors and assigns, the right to enter the Property at any time during the term of this Contract for the purpose of conducting Inspections, upon reasonable notice, at a mutually agreed upon time; provided, however, that **Buyer**, its agents, contractors and assigns enter the Property and conduct Inspections at their own risk. Buyer will indemnify and hold Seller harmless from losses, damages, costs, claims and expenses of any nature, including attorneys' fees at all levels, and from liability to any person, arising from the conduct of any and all inspections or any work authorized by Buyer. Buyer will not engage in any activity that could result in a mechanic's lien being filed against the Property without Seller's prior written consent. In the event this transaction does not close, (1) Buyer will repair all damages to the Buyer (\_\_\_\_\_) and Seller (\_\_\_\_\_) (\_\_\_\_\_) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is Page 3 of 8 Pages.

91

92

93

94

95 96

97

98 99

100

101

102

103

104

105 106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125 126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136 137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

Property resulting from the Inspections and return the Property to the condition it was in prior to conduct of the Inspections, and (2) **Buyer** will, at **Buyer's** expense release to **Seller** all reports and other work generated as a result of the Inspections. Should **Buyer** deliver timely notice that the Property is not acceptable, **Seller** agrees that **Buyer's** deposit will be immediately returned to **Buyer** and the Contract terminated.

- **(c) Walk-through Inspection: Buyer** may, on the day prior to closing or any other time mutually agreeable to the parties, conduct a final "walk-through" inspection of the Property to determine compliance with this paragraph and to ensure that all Property is on the premises.
- **8. OPERATION OF PROPERTY DURING CONTRACT PERIOD: Seller** will continue to operate the Property and any business conducted on the Property in the manner operated prior to Contract and will take no action that would adversely impact the Property after closing, as to tenants, lenders or business, if any. Any changes, such as renting vacant space, that materially affect the Property or **Buyer's** intended use of the Property will be permitted **X** only with **Buyer's** consent.
- **9. CLOSING PROCEDURE:** Unless otherwise agreed or stated herein, closing procedure shall be in accordance with the norms where the Property is located.
  - (a) Possession and Occupancy: Seller will deliver possession and occupancy of the Property to Buyer at closing. Seller will provide keys, remote controls, and any security/access codes necessary to operate all locks, mailboxes, and security systems.
  - **(b) Costs: Buyer** will pay **Buyer's** attorneys' fees, taxes and recording fees on notes, mortgages and financing statements and recording fees for the deed. **Seller** will pay **Seller's** attorneys' fees, taxes on the deed and recording fees for documents needed to cure title defects. If **Seller** is obligated to discharge any encumbrance at or prior to closing and fails to do so, **Buyer** may use purchase proceeds to satisfy the encumbrances.
  - (c) Documents: Seller will provide the deed; bill of sale; mechanic's lien affidavit; originals of those assignable service and maintenance contracts that will be assumed by **Buyer** after the Closing Date and letters to each service contractor from **Seller** advising each of them of the sale of the Property and, if applicable, the transfer of its contract, and any assignable warranties or guarantees received or held by **Seller** from any manufacturer, contractor, subcontractor, or material supplier in connection with the Property; current copies of the condominium documents, if applicable; assignments of leases, updated rent roll; tenant and lender estoppels letters (if applicable); tenant subordination, non-disturbance and attornment agreements (SNDAs) required by the **Buyer** or **Buyer's** lender; assignments of permits and licenses; corrective instruments; and letters notifying tenants of the change in ownership/rental agent. If any tenant refuses to execute an estoppels letter, **Seller**, if requested by the **Buyer** in writing, will certify that information regarding the tenant's lease is correct. If **Seller** is an entity, **Seller** will deliver a resolution of its governing authority authorizing the sale and delivery of the deed and certification by the appropriate party certifying the resolution and setting forth facts showing the conveyance conforms to the requirements of local law. **Seller** will transfer security deposits to **Buyer**. **Buyer** will provide the closing statement, mortgages and notes, security agreements, and financing statements.
  - (d) Taxes and Prorations: Real estate taxes, personal property taxes on any tangible personal property, bond payments assumed by **Buyer**, interest, rents (based on actual collected rents), association dues, insurance premiums acceptable to **Buyer**, and operating expenses will be prorated through the day before closing. If the amount of taxes for the current year cannot be ascertained, rates for the previous year will be used with due allowance being made for improvements and exemptions. Any tax proration based on an estimate will, at request of either party, be readjusted upon receipt of current year's tax bill; this provision will survive closing.
  - (e) Special Assessment Liens: Certified, confirmed, and ratified special assessment liens as of the Closing Date will be paid by Seller. If a certified, confirmed, and ratified special assessment is payable in installments, Seller will pay all installments due and payable on or before the Closing Date, with any installment for any period extending beyond the Closing Date prorated, and Buyer will assume all installments that become due and payable after the Closing Date. Buyer will be responsible for all assessments of any kind which become due and owing after Closing Date, unless an improvement is substantially completed as of Closing Date. If an improvement is substantially completed as of the Closing Date but has not resulted in a lien before closing, Seller will pay the amount of the last estimate of the assessment. This subsection applies to special assessment liens imposed by a public body and does not apply to condominium association special assessments.

<b>(f) Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act (FIRPTA):</b> If <b>Seller</b> is a "foreign person" as defined by FIRPTA	Α,
Seller and Buyer agree to comply with Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code. Seller and Buyer will	
complete, execute, and deliver as directed any instrument, affidavit, or statement reasonably necessary to comp	эly

Buyer (	()	()	and <b>Seller</b>	() (	()	) acknowledge	e receipt o	of a copy	of this pag	ge, which is	Page 4 of 8	B Pages.

with the FIRPTA requirements, including delivery of their respective federal taxpayer identification numbers or Social Security Numbers to the closing agent. If **Buyer** does not pay sufficient cash at closing to meet the withholding requirement, **Seller** will deliver to **Buyer** at closing the additional cash necessary to satisfy the requirement.

- 10. ESCROW AGENT: Seller and Buyer authorize Escrow Agent or Closing Agent (collectively "Agent") to receive, deposit, and hold funds and other property in escrow and, subject to collection, disburse them in accordance with the terms of this Contract. The parties agree that Agent will not be liable to any person for misdelivery of escrowed items to Seller or Buyer, unless the misdelivery is due to Agent's willful breach of this Contract or gross negligence. If Agent has doubt as to Agent's duties or obligations under this Contract, Agent may, at Agent's option, (a) hold the escrowed items until the parties mutually agree to its disbursement or until a court of competent jurisdiction or arbitrator determines the rights of the parties or (b) deposit the escrowed items with the clerk of the court having jurisdiction over the matter and file an action in interpleader. Upon notifying the parties of such action, Agent will be released from all liability except for the duty to account for items previously delivered out of escrow. If Agent is a licensed real estate broker, Agent will comply with Chapter 475, Florida Statutes. In any suit in which Agent interpleads the escrowed items or is made a party because of acting as Agent hereunder, Agent will recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred, with these amounts to be paid from and out of the escrowed items and charged and awarded as court costs in favor of the prevailing party.
- - 12. FORCE MAJEURE: Buyer or Seller shall not be required to perform any obligation under this Contract or be liable to each other for damages so long as performance or non-performance of the obligation, or the availability of services, insurance, or required approvals essential to Closing, is disrupted, delayed, caused or prevented by Force Majeure. "Force Majeure" means: hurricanes, floods, extreme weather, earthquakes, fire, or other acts of God, unusual transportation delays, or wars, insurrections, or acts of terrorism, which, by exercise of reasonable diligent effort, the non-performing party is unable in whole or in part to prevent or overcome. All time periods, including Closing Date, will be extended a reasonable time up to 7 days after the Force Majeure no longer prevents performance under this Contract, provided, however, if such Force Majeure continues to prevent performance under this Contract more than 30 days beyond Closing Date, then either party may terminate this Contract by delivering written notice to the other and the Deposit shall be refunded to **Buyer**, thereby releasing **Buyer** and **Seller** from all further obligations under this Contract.
  - 13. RETURN OF DEPOSIT: Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, in the event any condition of this Contract is not met and **Buyer** has timely given any required notice regarding the condition having not been met, **Buyer's** deposit will be returned in accordance with applicable Florida Laws and regulations.

#### 14. DEFAULT:

- (a) In the event the sale is not closed due to any default or failure on the part of **Seller** other than failure to make the title marketable after diligent effort, **Buyer** may elect to receive return of Buyer's deposit without thereby waiving any action for damages resulting from Seller's breach and may seek to recover such damages or seek specific performance. If Buyer elects a deposit refund, Seller may be liable to Broker for the full amount of the brokerage fee.
- (b) In the event the sale is not closed due to any default or failure on the part of **Buyer**, **Seller** may either (1) retain all deposit(s) paid or agreed to be paid by **Buyer** as agreed upon liquidated damages, consideration for the execution of this Contract, and in full settlement of any claims, upon which this Contract will terminate or (2) seek specific performance. If **Buyer** fails to timely place a deposit as required by this Contract, **Seller** may either (1) terminate the Contract and seek the remedy outlined in this subparagraph or (2) proceed with the Contract without waiving any remedy for **Buyer's** default.
- **15. ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS:** In any claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Contract, the prevailing party, which for purposes of this provision will include **Buyer**, **Seller** and Broker, will be awarded reasonable attorneys' fees, costs, and expenses.
- **16. NOTICES:** All notices will be in writing and may be delivered by mail, overnight courier, personal delivery, or electronic means. Parties agree to send all notices to addresses specified on the signature page(s). Any notice, document, or item given by or delivered to an attorney or real estate licensee (including a transaction broker) representing a party will be as effective as if given by or delivered to that party.

Buyer (	) (	) and Seller (	) (	) acknowledge receipt of a copy	of this page, v	which is Page 5 of 8 Pages.
---------	-----	----------------	-----	---------------------------------	-----------------	-----------------------------

#### 17. DISCLOSURES:

- (a) Commercial Real Estate Sales Commission Lien Act: The Florida Commercial Real Estate Sales Commission Lien Act provides that a broker has a lien upon the owner's net proceeds from the sale of commercial real estate for any commission earned by the broker under a brokerage agreement. The lien upon the owner's net proceeds is a lien upon personal property which attaches to the owner's net proceeds and does not attach to any interest in real property. This lien right cannot be waived before the commission is earned.
- **(b)** Special Assessment Liens Imposed by Public Body: The Property may be subject to unpaid special assessment lien(s) imposed by a public body. (A public body includes a Community Development District.) Such liens, if any, shall be paid as set forth in Paragraph 9(e).
- **(c) Radon Gas:** Radon is a naturally occurring radioactive gas that, when it has accumulated in a building in sufficient quantities, may present health risks to persons who are exposed to it over time. Levels of radon that exceed federal and state guidelines have been found in buildings in Florida. Additional information regarding radon and radon testing may be obtained from your county public health unit.
- **(d) Energy-Efficiency Rating Information: Buyer** acknowledges receipt of the information brochure required by Section 553.996, Florida Statutes.

#### 18. RISK OF LOSS:

- (a) If, after the Effective Date and before closing, the Property is damaged by fire or other casualty, **Seller** will bear the risk of loss and **Buyer** may cancel this Contract without liability and the deposit(s) will be returned to **Buyer**. Alternatively, **Buyer** will have the option of purchasing the Property at the agreed upon purchase price and **Seller** will credit the deductible, if any and transfer to **Buyer** at closing any insurance proceeds, or **Seller's** claim to any insurance proceeds payable for the damage. **Seller** will cooperate with and assist **Buyer** in collecting any such proceeds. **Seller** shall not settle any insurance claim for damage caused by casualty without the consent of the **Buyer**.
- (b) If, after the Effective Date and before closing, any part of the Property is taken in condemnation or under the right of eminent domain, or proceedings for such taking will be pending or threatened, **Buyer** may cancel this Contract without liability and the deposit(s) will be returned to **Buyer**. Alternatively, **Buyer** will have the option of purchasing what is left of the Property at the agreed upon purchase price and **Seller** will transfer to the **Buyer** at closing the proceeds of any award, or **Seller's** claim to any award payable for the taking. **Seller** will cooperate with and assist **Buyer** in collecting any such award.
- **19. ASSIGNABILITY; PERSONS BOUND:** This Contract may be assigned to a related entity, and otherwise **X** is not assignable □ is assignable. If this Contract may be assigned, **Buyer** shall deliver a copy of the assignment agreement to the **Seller** at least 5 days prior to Closing. The terms "**Buyer**," "**Seller**" and "Broker" may be singular or plural. This Contract is binding upon **Buyer**, **Seller** and their heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns (if assignment is permitted).
- **20. MISCELLANEOUS:** The terms of this Contract constitute the entire agreement between **Buyer** and **Seller**. Modifications of this Contract will not be binding unless in writing, signed and delivered by the party to be bound. Signatures, initials, documents referenced in this Contract, counterparts and written modifications communicated electronically or on paper will be acceptable for all purposes, including delivery, and will be binding. Handwritten or typewritten terms inserted in or attached to this Contract prevail over preprinted terms. If any provision of this Contract is or becomes invalid or unenforceable, all remaining provisions will continue to be fully effective. This Contract will be construed under Florida law and will not be recorded in any public records.
- **21. BROKERS:** Neither **Seller** nor **Buyer** has used the services of, or for any other reason owes compensation to, a licensed real estate Broker other than:

(a) Seller's Broker:	Collier's Intertnational	Daniel Drotos
	(Company Name)	(Licensee)
	104 SW 6th St, Gainesville, FL	32601
	(Address, Telephone, Fax, E-mail)	
who  is a single agent	🔀 is a transaction broker 🗌 has no brokerage r	elationship and who will be compensated_ by
	oth parties pursuant to   a listing agreement	
-		
		D 011 D 11
(b) Buyer's Broker:	Bosshardt Realty Services, LLC	Perry G McDonald
(b) Buyer's Broker:	(Company Name)	(Licensee)
(b) Buyer's Broker:		(Licensee)
(b) Buyer's Broker:	(Company Name)	(Licensee)
	(Company Name) 5542 NW 43rd ST, Gainesville, Fl (Address, Telephone, Fax, E-mail)	(Licensee)

CC-5 Rev. 9/17 ©2017 Florida Realtors<sup>®</sup>

302 303 304		ction broker ☐ has no brokerage relationship and who will ☐ both parties pursuant to 🜠 an MLS offer of compensation [	
305 306 307 308 309 310 311	inquiries, introductions, consultations, a indemnify and hold Broker harmless from reasonable attorneys' fees at all levels inconsistent with the representation in Paragraph 10, (3) any duty accepted by services regulated by Chapter 475, Flo	connection with any act relating to the Property, including and negotiations resulting in this transaction. <b>Seller</b> and <b>B</b> om and against losses, damages, costs and expenses of a square and from liability to any person, arising from (1) compensithis Paragraph, (2) enforcement action to collect a brokera by Broker at the request of <b>Seller</b> or <b>Buyer</b> , which is beyond or a statutes, as amended, or (4) recommendations of or	uyer agree to any kind, including ation claimed which is age fee pursuant to defect the scope of services provided and
312		whom Broker refers, recommends, or retains for or on beha any of the following clauses are applicable and are attache	•
314	this Contract):	arry of the following olduses are applicable and are attached	a as an addendam to
315	☐ Arbitration	☐ Seller Warranty ☐ Existing Mo	tgage
316	☐ Section 1031 Exchange	☐ Coastal Construction Control Line ☐ Buyer's Atto	rney Approval
317	☐ Property Inspection and Repair	☐ Flood Area Hazard Zone ☐ Seller's Atto	
318	☐ Seller Representations	☐ Seller Financing ☐ Other	
319	23. ADDITIONAL TERMS:		
320 321			
322			
323			
324			
325 326			
327			
328			
329			
330 331			
332			
333			
334			
335 336			
337			
338			
339			
340			
341			
342 343 344 345 346 347	ADVICE OF AN ATTORNEY PRIOR TO FACTS AND REPRESENTATIONS TO PROFESSIONAL FOR LEGAL ADVICE FRECT OF LAWS ON THE PROPER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS, ETC.	LY BINDING CONTRACT. IF NOT FULLY UNDERSTOO FO SIGNING. BROKER ADVISES BUYER AND SELLER HAT ARE IMPORTANT TO THEM AND TO CONSULT AND EC (FOR EXAMPLE, INTERPRETING CONTRACTS, DETATY AND TRANSACTION, STATUS OF TITLE, FOREIGN.) AND FOR TAX, PROPERTY CONDITION, ENVIRONMENTAL	TO VERIFY ALL N APPROPRIATE FERMINING THE N INVESTOR ENTAL AND OTHER
	Buyer () () and Seller ()	) () acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is Pa	ge 7 of 8 Pages.

Each person signing this Contract on behalf of a party that party that such signatory has full power and authority to e terms and each person executing this Contract and other to do so.	nter into and perform this Contract in accordance with its
(Signature of Buyer	Date:
, ,	
Alachua County Children's Trust (Typed or Printed Name of Buyer)	Tax ID No.:
Title:	Telephone:
	Date:
(Signature of Buyer	
	Tax ID No.:
(Typed or Printed Name of Buyer)	
Title:	Telephone:
Buyer's Address for purpose of notice	
Facsimile:	Email:
	Date:
(Signature of Seller)	
Typed or Printed Name of Seller)	Tax ID No.:
Title:	Telephone:
	Date:
(Signature of Seller)	
	Tax ID No.:
(Typed or Printed Name of Seller)	
Title:	Telephone:
Seller's Address for purpose of notice:	
Facsimile:	Email:
The Florida Association of REALTORS® makes no representation as to transaction. This standardized form should not be used in complex transthe entire real estate industry and is not intended to identify the user as	sactions or with extensive riders or additions. This form is available for

# **Attendance List**

Name	Organization	Email address	Contact number
Gregory Winley	Houlth-1 Start		
SherryKitchers	1	Sherna cac	352-494- 3839
Wareticke	MBI		362-281-036
DeKora Batey	City of Gainesville Bryck Ard Pragram	e bikered prity of	352-393-843
	s Aces InM		
AlAN Paulin	Merichan	on file	252-672-279
Anne (Cotah	AIM	1 (	′ (
Waterher Marcher	Reichert	blowtifilonellove	642-3796
James Miller	Mirror Image Leadership Academy	jmiller@mirrorimage leadershipsery	352-204-0072
VINA GARRY	Reicher Harge	Nilp CARCHEINAMOic.	~357-365-4950

# **Attendance List**

Name	Organization	Email address	Contact number
Nikki Thompson	Goodwill	nthompson@ goodwillyaxo	8 8727
CHRISTI APPINGTUS	GIANI PEACE, INC.	CHAIIN & GILLSPLACE	152 373 1415
Patricia Lec.	Tee Foundation AM	tee Fonter despond	CM 352459, 833
Hyle Schramm	Goodwill	Kschram@godwill	CM 352459.833 (772) 879-7481
Leah Galione	PEAK Literacy	leah@peakliteraag.a	org 352-3591270
Monica Jones	IM.B.F	MOND764Q AMailia	352·565·7009
Story Merritt		stay merritt Optst.org	
Jeff Parker		jeffpeigbrunterng-len	672.4373
KENYETTA JACISTON	BECNF	Kenyethjeloganf.org	904.294.4890
Chande Mays,	Bob Crime Task Force	Charlemayer Cogmail. Nom	3SJ) W81-10197
Carlonda McTier	Sel.f	Carlondamutier Dgo gmail, com	386 383